
 

Guiding Values:  Integrity – Dignity – Professionalism – Team Work - Quality 

 

Petersburg Medical Center 

  
103 Fram Street                            Phone:  907-772-4291 

 PO Box 589                Fax:  907-772-3085 

 Petersburg, AK  99833 

 

 

BOARD MEETING 

A g e n d a 

 

DATE:   Thursday, May 28th, 2020 

TIME:    5:00 p.m. 

LOCATION:   Zoom Conference Call 

 

                                                                                                Lead           Handout  

I. CALL TO ORDER     Chair    N/A 

 

II. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA                              Chair    in packet 

 

III. APPROVAL OF BOARD MINUTES                       Chair   in packet 

             – March 26th, 2020 and April 23rd, 2020                                           

 

IV. VISITOR COMMENTS    Chair    N/A 

 

V. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS   Chair    N/A 

 

VI. REPORTS 

A. Quality & Infection Prevention   L. Bacom  at meeting 

Action required: Informational only 

 B.  Executive Summary    P. Hofstetter  in packet 

Action required: Informational only 

C.  Financial            R. Tejera  in packet          

Action required: Informational only 

    

VII. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 

VIII. NEW BUSINESS 

 

IX. NEXT MEETING 

  

X. ADJOURNMENT 



 

 

Petersburg Medical Center 
PO Box 589 

Petersburg, Alaska 99833 

Phone: (907) 772-4291 / Fax: (907) 772-3085 
 

 
 

             Meeting:  Medical Center Board Meeting 

             Date: March 26th, 2020   Time:  5:00 p.m. 
 

Board Members Present: Joe Stratman, Cindi Lagoudakis, Jim Roberts, George Doyle, 

Marlene Cushing, Jerod Cook, Kathi Riemer (all members attended via Zoom) 

 

Board Members Absent: None 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER: Member Cook called the meeting to order at 5:02 p.m. 

 

II. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA: Member Cushing made a motion to approve the 

agenda. Motion seconded by Member Roberts. Motion passed unanimously.  

 

III. APPROVAL OF BOARD MINUTES: The minutes from the January 23, 2020 board 

meeting were inadvertently left out of the board packet so no action was taken on this 

item.    

 

IV. VISITORS COMMENTS: Bob Lynn thanked staff for all they have done for the 

Borough regarding preparing for COVID-19. He then proceeded to ask a couple of 

questions regarding the operational plans for responding to COVID-19. He added that the 

Borough will provide support if needed.  

 

V. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS: Member Cushing stated PMC staff are working 

hard and the community is watching knowing that they are very dependent on PMC. 

Member Lagoudakis commented that everyone is doing an amazing job and she 

appreciates how calm the staff are in responding. She suggested telling people that they 

will look into it and get back to them if there is a question they do not know the answer 

to. Member Riemer stated that she appreciates the daily radio show and the hospital’s 

participation. She added the show is very information. She encouraged the staff to stay 

safe and take care of themselves. Member Roberts noted that he agreed with all the above 

comments about the hospital staff. He then asked questions regarding COVID related 

waivers and hospital preparedness if patients need to be medevaced. Member Stratman 

agree with board members regarding hospital staff. He thanked PMC staff and 

appreciates the effort by the staff. Member Doyle echoed previous comments regarding 

staff. Member Cook also thanked the staff and recognized the effort of the staff. 



 

 

VI. REPORTS: 

A. Quality & Infection Prevention. Liz Bacom provided a verbal report. She stated that 

expressing the importance of social distancing and hand hygiene to the community will 

go a long way to flattening the curve and limiting the spread. The State of Alaska 

provides a daily update on their website on COVID cases in the state. The State is 

reporting cases by community instead of by region. L. Bacom noted that she is the PIO 

for Incident Command. She is also the administrator on a local Petersburg COVID 

Facebook group where she posts and monitors information. Several hospital staff are 

working from home which minimizes traffic and the potential spread. There has been 

good, clear communication between the hospital and Borough in terms of reaching out to 

the State EOC for support. She added that her priority is to keep staff and residents safe. 

Hospital staff are screened once a day upon arriving for duty and residents are screened 

twice a day. She stated by saying that everyone should walk through life acting like we 

are all contaminated. She ended by saying that you cannot mandate common sense 

B. Executive Summary. In addition to his written report, P. Hofstetter provided a verbal 

report. He stated that the Emergency Operation Command was initiated on March 11th.  

There is a daily briefing Monday through Friday. During that briefing, roles are assigned 

for the day and action items are addressed during the day. He added that staff try to stay 

on top of CDC and State guidelines. He noted that PMC have taken aggressive measures 

such as limiting entry into the facility and completing a temperature screening and 

questionnaire upon entering facility. The section chiefs hold a debriefing in the evenings 

to review what happened that day and prepare action items for the next day. The 

respiratory clinic has been setup outside for triage. Plans are to continue working with 

Borough. J. Bryner added that a COVID hotline has been established and the process is 

streamlined to conduct assessments over the phone before coming in to be screened in the 

respiratory clinic. She noted that is has been amazing to keep patients out of the facility 

and to minimize exposure. Planning for surge capacity is ongoing as well as identifying 

alternate care site. Additionally, there has been a transition to telehealth services. Dr. 

Hyer reported that the respiratory clinic is going very well and staff are being protected 

while conducting testing. Patients are being encouraged to utilize telehealth. Staff will 

continue working on all levels of preparedness. L. Miller stated that as operations chief 

she is always thinking ahead and what we may need. Currently looking into bringing 

testing inhouse. Quest and the State labs are overwhelmed with samples at this point in 

time. There is better turnaround time with the State and hope that continues to improve as 

the process improves statewide. Member Cushing asked if there is a payment mechanism 

for telehealth visits. P. Hofstetter talked about the regulations being loosened and the 

waivers being issued for telehealth.  

C. Financial. R. Tejera stated that is has been challenging times in the finance 

department. The Senate passed the Relief Bill so she will be watching closely for the 

funds to be funneled to the communities, especially the small hospitals. Over $100 billion 

was approved for expenses and loss of revenue for hospitals. A department has been 

created to track all expenses related to the COVID virus. She reviewed the financials 

from February noting that the month ended with a loss due to investments. She noted that 

she has been working very closely with the Borough on the budgets.  

 

 



 

 

VII. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 

VIII. NEW BUSINESS 

 

IX. EXECUTIVE SESSION: Member Lagoudakis made a motion that the Board enter into  

Executive Session to discuss matters, the immediate knowledge of which would clearly 

have an adverse effect upon the finances of Petersburg Medical Center. Motion seconded 

by Member Cushing. Motion passed unanimously. Board entered Executive Session at 

5:49 p.m. Member Roberts made a motion to come out of Executive Session. Motion 

seconded by Member Lagoudakis. The Board came out of Executive Session at 6:50 p.m. 

 

X. NEXT MEETING: Next regularly scheduled meeting was set for Thursday, April 23, 

2020 at 5:00 p.m. via Zoom.  

 

XI. ADJOURNMENT: Member Cushing made a motion to adjourn. Motion was  

 seconded by Member Roberts. Motion passed unanimously. The meeting adjourned at 

 6:51 p.m.   

 

       Respectfully submitted, 

 

       _________________________________ 

       Marlene Cushing, Board Secretary 
 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Petersburg Medical Center 
PO Box 589 

Petersburg, Alaska 99833 

Phone: (907) 772-4291 / Fax: (907) 772-3085 
 

 
 

             Meeting:  Medical Center Board Meeting 

             Date: April 23rd, 2020   Time:  5:00 p.m. 
 

Board Members Present: Joe Stratman, Cindi Lagoudakis, Jim Roberts, George Doyle, 

Marlene Cushing, Jerod Cook, Kathi Riemer (all members attended via Zoom) 

 

Board Members Absent: None 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER: Member Cook called the meeting to order at 4:59 p.m. 

 

II. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA: Member Doyle made a motion to amend the agenda 

to add Medical Staff Reappointment Schedule to New Business. Motion seconded by 

Member Cushing. Motion passed unanimously. Member Stratman made a Motion to 

approve the agenda as amended. Motion seconded by Member Cushing. Motion passed 

unanimously.  

 

III. APPROVAL OF BOARD MINUTES: Member Cushing made a motion to approve the 

minutes as presented from the board meeting on January 23rd, 2020. Motion seconded by 

Member Lagoudakis. Motion passed unanimously.    

 

IV. VISITORS COMMENTS: None 

 

V. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS: Member Cushing noted that it is National 

Laboratory week and thanked the lab staff for the excellent job they do and continue to 

do. Member Lagoudakis thanked L. Bacom’s comments to the Assembly and thankful for 

the staff.  

 

VI. REPORTS: 

A. Quality & Infection Prevention. L. Bacom provided a verbal report. She stated that 

she has been trying to keep up with the latest from the CDC and Alaska Epidemiology in 

order to keep patients and staff safe. As the Public Information Officer for Incident 

Command, she works with the Borough PIO to issue a weekly press release with 

information from the hospital, Borough and school district.   

B. Executive Summary. P. Hofstetter highlighted some key points noted in his written 

report (see copy). He has not seen the science behind the proposed phases of reopening 



 

 

the economy, but there seems to be a downward trend of cases. He is concerned about the 

incoming seasonal workforce. He also stated that Petersburg has a vulnerable population.  

C. Financial. R. Tejera stated that flattening the curve has a high price tag that has 

impacted the financial situation. She reviewed the financials for March. There was a loss  

of $739,000 from operations and net loss of $953,000. The loss in revenue is due to the 

temporary restriction on medical procedures and services. Gross revenue in some 

departments decreased anywhere from 45% to 65%. There was a 42% decrease from the 

average monthly revenue. Additionally, expenses were higher than budget. This variance 

was driven by an increase in salaries due to overtime and an increase in supplies in 

response to the Coronavirus. As of today, the cost to manage the pandemic adds up to 

$373,000. She then reviewed the statement of cash flow which shows a net change in 

cash of $693,000 from the beginning of the fiscal year. R. Tejera stated that she has been 

proactive in searching for and applying for financial aid. She then reviewed a matrix of 

aid that has been applied for, aid that has been received, and expected aid. Programs that 

have been applied for include grants, loans, or advance payments on future claims. She 

added that PMC has applied for a total of $6.3 million and received $5.8 million. The 

total cash balance is over $12 million which is 264 days cash on hand.  

 

VII. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 

VIII. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Medical Staff Reappointment Schedule. Member Stratman made a motion that the 

Petersburg Medical Center Board of Director’s approves waiving the reappointment 

scheduled of the Medical Staff Roster for 2020 as allowed by CMS. Motion seconded by 

Member Lagoudakis. J. Kvernvik explained that CMS released a waiver that allows 

physicians whose privileges expires to continue practicing at the hospital and for new 

physicians to be able to practice in the hospital before full medical/governing body 

review and approval to address workforce concerns related to COVID-19. She added that 

the hospital physicians are in favor of this motion. Motion passed unanimously. 

 

IX. EXECUTIVE SESSION: Member Riemer made a motion that the Board enter into  

Executive Session for a legal update and to discuss matters, the immediate knowledge of 

which would clearly have an adverse effect upon the finances of Petersburg Medical 

Center. Motion seconded by Member Roberts. Motion passed unanimously. Board 

entered Executive Session at 5:34 p.m. Member Roberts made a motion to come out of 

Executive Session. Motion seconded by Member Stratman. The Board came out of 

Executive Session at 5:54 p.m. 

 

X. NEXT MEETING: Next regularly scheduled meeting was set for Thursday, May 28th, 

2020 at 5:00 p.m. via Zoom.  

 

XI. ADJOURNMENT: Member Lagoudakis made a motion to adjourn. Motion was  

 seconded by Member Roberts. Motion passed unanimously. The meeting adjourned at 

 5:54 p.m.   

 



 

 

       Respectfully submitted, 

 

       _________________________________ 

       Marlene Cushing, Board Secretary 
 

 

 

 

 



Petersburg Medical Center 
PO Box 589 

Petersburg, Alaska 99833 

Phone: (907) 772-4291 / Fax: (907) 772-3085 

  

1 
 

CEO Report: 

The following updates are not a comprehensive summary of activities due to the activation of the 

Emergency Preparedness Incident Command Center from the COVID-19 response since March 11th.     

Petersburg medical center is now in its’ 3rd month of Incident Command System since it was activated 

under the COVID pandemic.  We continue to allocate the bulk of our resources, staff, and monitoring 

toward COVID-19 preparation and mitigation strategies.  We are in the 10th operational period and as 

Petersburg is planning to open safely PMC has instituted a number of changes to accommodate the 

opening of Alaska. The PMC Incident command briefings 

have decreased from twice daily to 1 time a day M, W, F.  

PMC is also represented in the branch of the Borough 

emergency operations center which decreased the amount 

of briefings to twice a week, Tues and Thurs 10:30am.   In 

similar fashion the KFSK live with Borough Incident 

command, School, Public Health Nurse and PMC report 

daily have decreased to 2 times a week at 12:30 pm.  

Situational briefings are provided on the days of the 

briefing to staff and board members throughout the week 

and I have restarted the daily blog on alternate days. The 

effort to keep staff informed is a challenge and I added a video blog on the newly created PMC 

YouTube Channel.  The intent is to provide a 2-3 minute video update to staff once a week.  The PMC 

channel also has a number of excellent video treatment exercises and training provided by our 

professional staff.   

 

The past 3 months PMC has spent considerable resources in progressively 

increasing its’ preparation for surge, infection control, testing capability, 

and creating a bubble for our vulnerable 

LTC residents.  We have had a total of 3 

recovered cases.   There are 255 tests that 

were completed and 9 pending at the time 

of this report.  As the state reopens we 

were able to organize the first State of 

Alaska ECHO meeting as an Assembly 

worksession in collaboration with the Borough Incident Command and 

Public Health.  The State of Alaska provided Dr. Zink, the medical 

director and her team to present and answer questions from the 

community.  This was the first combined effort with the community, 



Petersburg Medical Center 
PO Box 589 

Petersburg, Alaska 99833 

Phone: (907) 772-4291 / Fax: (907) 772-3085 

  

2 
 

hospital and public health experts to educate and 

prepare the community for planning to safely 

operate in the presence of a COVID pandemic.  

There is a link on the KFSK website to access the 

presentation and the state will provide a follow up 

of the recording with all the questions answered 

(including those missed) for the community.  

There is interest in creating a monthly call for 

regional communities to follow the same format.  

This will assist in the development of an evolving 

Petersburg community wide COVID plan.  

Internally, our incident command team created a 

Red / Yellow /Green format that links relaxing or 

strengthening restrictions for COVID.  We are 

following conservative safety guidelines and 

recommendations provided by CDC, State and 

CMS.  PMC staff are assisting local businesses (i.e. Childcare and Seafood) as a resource for screening 

stations and questions.  Additionally, we are working on an asymptomatic testing strategy to prioritize 

testing in the community. PMC begin its asymptomatic testing on all LTC and LTC staff last week.  We 

are evaluating our supplies and resources to ramp up testing for high risk groups in the community.  

PMC received the Abbott ID units from the state last month as a point of care lab test but as reported 

previously the low sensitivity is not ideal for asymptomatic testing.  PMC does have is a Cepheid GeneX 

unit which is accurate (sensitivity /specificity) for onsite COVID-19 testing however, cartridges are a 

scarce resource.  We submitted a request to the state and may receive these to specifically test the 

fishery workers coming into Petersburg.   

The reductions of routine services to the community 

continues of upwards of 35%-50% depending on the service 

department. ER volumes are reduced ~50% while the clinic 

is slowly creeping upwards (25% reduction projected in 

May). Telehealth has increased from 5 visits in February to 

almost 200 visits in May.  HomeHealth has experienced an 

increase to their census of 15 patients.  This is a significant 

and interesting trend upwards.  We are working on 

supporting this increase with additional nursing staff and 

adding home monitoring equipment with an appropriate telehealth vendor.  The concern of volumes at 

the facility is offset slightly with innovation, home visits, telehealth and educational outreach videos for 

patients.  The PMC clinic, under a green light status, is beginning to open up routine appointments by 

priority and this is expected to increase in the next month.     



Petersburg Medical Center 
PO Box 589 

Petersburg, Alaska 99833 

Phone: (907) 772-4291 / Fax: (907) 772-3085 

  

3 
 

 

The finance team has completed significant steps in recouping financial assistance programs and grants 

to offset the revenue purge.  There is also a lot of effort in completing budget training for managers with 

Cynthia Brandt and the finance team.  Rocio will have a more comprehensive financial update; however, 

PMC continues to incur a ratio of high expenses and low revenue in its’ preparation for COVID.   

Lastly, PMC continues to be fortunate to have such an incredibly versatile and hard working / amazing 

team.   

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

Feb Mar Apr May May Prj

Service Volumes Telehealth














	Board Agenda 2020, 05.28
	Board Meeting Minutes 2020 03.26 draft
	Board Meeting Minutes 2020 04.23 draft
	CEO Report Special report COVID 5-2020
	April Financials

